

Date of meeting: 9 July 2024 Location: Council Chambers

Time: 6:30 PM

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### **Table of Contents**

1. WELCOME	5
2. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OFFICIAL VISITORS TO THE COUNCIL	5
3. APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR ATTENDANCE BY AUDIO-VISUAL LINK BY COUNCILLORS	6
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS	7
5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	8
6. AGENDA ITEMS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC ADDRESS	9
7. CONDOLENCES	10
8. MAYORAL MINUTES	10
9. EXCEPTION REPORTS – ADOPTION OF ITEMS NOT IDENTIFIED FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION	11
10. REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION	12
10.1. PLANNING DECISIONS	12
10.2. GENERAL MANAGER	13
10.2.1. GM - By-Election for Council Representative on the Hawkesbury River County Council (79351, 95496, 12212)	- 13
10.2.2. GM - 2024 Local Government NSW Annual Conference Motions – (79351, 79633)	14
10.3. CITY PLANNING	15
10.3.1. CP - 2023/2024 Community Sponsorship Program - Round 3 - (95498, 96328)	15
10.3.2. CP – Hawkesbury Active Transport Plan – (95498)	17
10.4. CORPORATE SERVICES	18
10.4.1. CS - Investment Report - May 2024 - (95496, 96332)	18
10.4.2. CS - Internal Audit Charter (158054, 121470, 95496, 79351)	19
10.5. INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES	20
11. RECEIPT OF MINUTES OF OTHER COMMITTEES	21
11.1.1. ROC - Floodplain Management Committee - 17 April 2024 and 15 May 2024 - (161821, 124414, 95498)	21
11.1.2. ROC - Heritage Committee - 2 May 2024 - (80242)	23
11.1.3. ROC - Disaster and Emergency Committee - 28 May 2024 - (151940)	26
11.1.4. ROC - Local Traffic Committee - 13 May 2024 - (82045)	27

Minutes: 9 July 2024

11.1.5. ROC - Local Traffic Committee - 17 June 2	024 - (82045)28
12. NOTICES OF MOTION	29
12.1.1. NM1 - Tree Planting, George Street, Winds	sor
12.1.2. NM2 - Recognition and Thank you, Superir	
13. QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE	
14. RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE F	ROM PREVIOUS MEETING32
14.1.1. Responses to Councillor Questions Taken	
14.1.2. Responses to Councillor Questions Taken	
15. CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS	33

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 1. WELCOME

Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held at the Council Chambers, Windsor, on 9 July 2024, commencing at 6:31pm.

#### a) Acknowledgement of Indigenous Heritage

The Mayor, Councillor Sarah McMahon acknowledged the Indigenous Heritage.

#### b) General Manager's Matters for Mention

The General Manager addressed the Council meeting, mentioning:

- Emergency Procedures
- Recording of the Council Meeting
- Statement regarding people addressing the Meeting
- Mobile phones

#### 2. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OFFICIAL VISITORS TO THE COUNCIL

There were no official visitors to Council.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

## 3. APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR ATTENDANCE BY AUDIO-VISUAL LINK BY COUNCILLORS

#### **Attendance**

**PRESENT:** Councillor Sarah McMahon, Mayor, Councillor Barry Calvert, Deputy Mayor and Councillors Patrick Conolly, Shane Djuric, Eddie Dogramaci, Amanda Kotlash, Mary Lyons-Buckett, Jill Reardon, Les Sheather, Paul Veigel, Danielle Wheeler and Nathan Zamprogno.

**ALSO PRESENT:** General Manager – Elizabeth Richardson, Director City Planning – Meagan Ang, Director Corporate Services - Laurie Mifsud, Director Infrastructure Services - Will Barton, Manager Governance and Risk - Patricia Krzeminski, Manager Communications and Events - Suzanne Stuart, Road Safety Officer - Cathy Mills and Administrative Support Coordinator - Melissa Ryan.

The Mayor, Councillor Sarah McMahon advised that a written request was received from Councillor Kotlash to attend tonight's Ordinary Meeting by audio-visual link as she was unable to attend the meeting in person due to personal reasons.

#### 119 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Calvert, seconded by Councillor Reardon that approval be granted to Councillor Kotlash to attend the Ordinary Council Meeting on 9 July 2024 by audio-visual link.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

Councillor Lyons-Buckett declared an interest in Item 10.3.1.

Councillor McMahon declared an interest in Item 12.1.2.

Councillor Wheeler declared an interest in Item 11.1.2.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### **5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES**

#### 120 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Reardon, seconded by Councillor Sheather that the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 11 June 2024, be confirmed.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 6. AGENDA ITEMS SUBJECT TO PUBLIC ADDRESS

The following item was subject to public address:

 Item 12.1.2. NM2 - Recognition and Thank you, Superintendent Karen Hodges AFSM, NSW Rural Fire Service

Minutes: 9 July 2024					
7. CONDOLENCES					
Nil reports.					
8. MAYORAL MINUTES					
Nil reports.					

Minutes: 9 July 2024

# 9. EXCEPTION REPORTS – ADOPTION OF ITEMS NOT IDENTIFIED FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 121 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

That the following items are dealt with by exception:

- Item 10.2.2.
- Item 10.4.2.
- Item 11.1.1.
- Item 11.1.3.
- Item 11.1.4.
- Item 11.1.5.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 10. REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

#### **10.1. PLANNING DECISIONS**

Nil reports.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### **10.2. GENERAL MANAGER**

10.2.1. GM - By-Election for Council Representative on the Hawkesbury River

County Council - (79351, 95496, 12212)

Previous Item: 004, Ordinary (11 January 2022)

**Directorate:** General Manager

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Conolly, seconded by Councillor Wheeler.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 122 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Conolly, seconded by Councillor Wheeler.

#### That:

- 1. Council not fill the vacancy for a Council representative to be elected on the Hawkesbury River County Council for the remainder of the January 2022 to September 2024 Council Term.
- 2. The General Manager and the Secretary of the Hawkesbury River County Council be advised of Council's decision.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel and Wheeler.

Against the Motion: Councillor Zamprogno.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

10.2.2. GM - 2024 Local Government NSW Annual Conference Motions - (79351,

79633)

**Directorate:** General Manager

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 123 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### That:

- 1. The report be received and noted.
- 2. Councillors submit proposed motions to the Office of the General Manager by Friday, 26 July 2024.
- 3. A further Council report be submitted to the 13 August 2024 Council Meeting to consider the proposed motions for submission to the 2024 Local Government NSW Annual Conference.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### **10.3. CITY PLANNING**

10.3.1. CP - 2023/2024 Community Sponsorship Program - Round 3 - (95498, 96328)

Previous Item: 4.3.3, Ordinary (14 May 2024)

**Directorate:** City Planning

Councillor Lyons-Buckett declared a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in this item, being that she is on the board of an affiliated organisation to one of the applicant organisations. Councillor Lyons-Buckett remained in the Chamber and participated in the discussion and voting on the matter.

A MOTION was moved by Councillor Conolly, seconded by Councillor Sheather.

#### That Council:

- 1. Approve payments for Section 356 Financial Assistance to the individuals and organisations listed in this report and at the level of funding recommended in this report.
- 2. Approve the execution of Council's standard Sponsorship Agreement for those applications where the approved level of funding is over \$500.
- Advise the six applicants, Animal Welfare League of NSW Hawkesbury, Sister2Sister Foundation Ltd, Greater West for Christ Chaplaincy, Grose View Parents and Citizens Association, Lower MacDonald Rural Fire Service and Mountains for Wildlife, that their applications were not successful as listed in this report.

#### 124 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Reardon, seconded by Councillor Veigel.

That the Council meeting be closed to deal with confidential matters and in accordance with Section 10A of the Local Government Act, 1993, members of the Press and the public be excluded from the Council Chambers during consideration of the following items:

Attachment 2 to Item 10.3.1. - Applicant names for the Participation Category.

#### **REASON FOR CONFIDENTIALITY**

This report is CONFIDENTIAL in accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Chapter 4 of the Local Government Act 1993 and the matters dealt with in this report are to be considered while the meeting is closed to the press and the public.

Specifically, the matter is to be dealt with pursuant to Section 10A(2)(a) of the Act as it relates to personnel matters concerning particular individuals (other than councillors).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 11(2) & (3) of the Local Government Act 1993, the reports, correspondence and other relevant documentation relating to this matter are to be withheld from the press and public.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 125 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Conolly, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett that open meeting be resumed.

#### **AMENDMENT**

AN AMENDMENT was moved by Councillor Zamprogno.

#### That Council:

- 1. Approve payments for Section 356 Financial Assistance to the individuals and organisations listed in this report and at the level of funding recommended in this report with the exception to allocate funding to the Animal Welfare League of NSW Hawkesbury and remove the funding to be provided to Richmond Community Services Incorporated.
- 2. Approve the execution of Council's standard Sponsorship Agreement for those applications where the approved level of funding is over \$500.
- 3. Advise the six applicants, Richmond Community Services Incorporated, Sister2Sister Foundation Ltd, Greater West for Christ Chaplaincy, Grose View Parents and Citizens Association, Lower MacDonald Rural Fire Service and Mountains for Wildlife, that their applications were not successful as listed in this report.

The Amendment lapsed for want of a seconder.

#### 126 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Conolly, seconded by Councillor Sheather.

#### That Council:

- 1. Approve payments for Section 356 Financial Assistance to the individuals and organisations listed in this report and at the level of funding recommended in this report.
- 2. Approve the execution of Council's standard Sponsorship Agreement for those applications where the approved level of funding is over \$500.
- Advise the six applicants, Animal Welfare League of NSW Hawkesbury, Sister2Sister Foundation Ltd, Greater West for Christ Chaplaincy, Grose View Parents and Citizens Association, Lower MacDonald Rural Fire Service and Mountains for Wildlife, that their applications were not successful as listed in this report.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Kotlash, Reardon, Sheather,

Veigel and Zamprogno.

**Against the Motion:** Councillors Dogramaci, Lyons-Buckett and Wheeler.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

10.3.2. **CP – Hawkesbury Active Transport Plan – (95498)** 

**Previous Item:** Ordinary (12 March 2024)

**Directorate:** City Planning

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Lyons-Buckett, seconded by Councillor Conolly.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 127 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Lyons-Buckett, seconded by Councillor Conolly.

That Council adopt the Hawkesbury Active Transport Plan, attached as Attachment 1 to this report.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### **10.4. CORPORATE SERVICES**

10.4.1. CS - Investment Report - May 2024 - (95496, 96332)

Previous Item: 4.4.6, Ordinary (14 May 2024)

**Directorate:** Corporate Services

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Wheeler, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 128 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Wheeler, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

That the Monthly Investment Report for May 2024 be received and noted.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

10.4.2. CS - Internal Audit Charter (158054, 121470, 95496, 79351)

**Directorate:** Corporate Services

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 129 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

That Council adopt the Internal Audit Charter attached as Attachment 1 to this report.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 10.5. INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

Nil reports.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 11. RECEIPT OF MINUTES OF OTHER COMMITTEES

11.1.1. ROC - Floodplain Management Committee - 17 April 2024 and 15 May 2024 - (161821, 124414, 95498)

**Directorate:** City Planning

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 130 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

That in relation to the Minutes of the Floodplain Management Committee Meetings held on the 17 April 2024 and 15 May 2024:

- 1. Council receive and note the Floodplain Management Committee Minutes in respect to items:
  - a) 3.1.1. and 3.1.2. (17 April 2024)
  - b) 3.1.1., 3.1.2. and General Business (15 May 2024).
- 2. Council note that the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item 3.1.3. (17 April 2024) will be considered by Council when the draft Amended Hawkesbury Floodplain Risk Management Study and Plan 2025 is formally presented to Council, namely:
  - 1. An approach of considering different flood planning levels in relation to development types, in particular including consideration of:
    - a) A flood planning level for residential development of 1 in 200 plus 0.5m freeboard
    - b) A flood planning level for commercial and industrial development of 1 in 100 plus 0.5m freeboard.
  - 2. Consideration of an approach to assessing development proposals for additions and alterations to existing lawful development.
  - 3. An invitation be extended to a representative from the Insurance Council to address a future Floodplain Management Committee Meeting.
  - 4. Recommend that a review of Volume 3 Hawkesbury Floodplain Risk Management Study and Plan 2012 be undertaken in relation to development controls proposed through local environmental plan amendments and formulation of a development control plan.
- 3. Council endorse the Committee Recommendation in respect of Item 3.1.3. (15 May 20224), namely:

That the Floodplain Management Committee note that grant funding under the NSW Government's Floodplain Management Program 2024-2025 is being sought to undertake a floodplain risk management study and plan for Redbank Creek.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno. For the Motion:

**Against the Motion:** Nil.

Nil. Absent:

Minutes: 9 July 2024

11.1.2. ROC - Heritage Committee - 2 May 2024 - (80242)

**Directorate:** City Planning

Councillor Wheeler declared a pecuniary interest in this item, being that her family home is included in the Slab Barn Study and proposed for heritage listing. Councillor Wheeler left the Chamber and did not participate in the discussion and voting on the matter.

#### MOTION:

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Conolly, seconded by Councillor Sheather.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 131 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Conolly, seconded by Councillor Sheather.

That in relation to the Minutes of the Heritage Committee Meeting held on the 2 May 2024:

- 1. Council receive and note the Heritage Committee in respect to item General Business H Allambie Cottages, Kurrajong Heights.
- 2. Council note the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item 3.1.1 Draft Hawkesbury Timber Slab Barns and Outbuildings Update Study and that these matters will be considered by Council when the draft Hawkesbury Timber Slab Barns and Outbuildings Update Study is formally presented to Council, namely:

That the Heritage Committee recommends:

- 1. Subject to the amendments identified in this report, the Heritage Committee endorse the Draft Hawkesbury Timber Slab Barns & Outbuildings Update Study and recommends that Council publicly exhibit the draft Study.
- 2. Council proceed with the proposed nominations for State Heritage listing.
- 3. Following formal adoption of the study, that Council consider having a launch at an appropriate location and using the study for educational purposes.
- 3. Council endorse the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item 3.1.2, namely: *That the Heritage Committee:* 
  - 1. Receive and note the update on the outcomes of the 2023/2024 Local Heritage Assistance Fund.
  - 2. Recommends that Council:
    - a) Deliver the 2024/2025 Local Heritage Assistance Fund based upon a theme of supporting the preservation and/or maintenance of timber slab barns and outbuildings.
    - b) Amend the funding arrangements for the 2024/2025 Local Heritage Assistance Fund as proposed in this report.
    - c) Contact Heritage NSW, the Minister for Heritage, the Hon. Penny Sharpe and Parliamentary Secretary for Heritage, Trish Doyle informing them of Council's

Minutes: 9 July 2024

- significant slab barn study and increased Heritage Assistance Funding and asking them to match that funding.
- d) Use the 2024/2025 Local Heritage Assistance Fund predominately for slab barns.
- e) Consider committing a large proportion of the funding to vulnerable proposed State listed items.
- f) Note the need to hold further discussion about how to address skills and materials for restoration of barns as per the recommendations made in the slab barn study.
- g) Consider that the Local Heritage Assistance Fund may need to be made available to properties identified in the slab barn study that are recommended for Heritage listing.
- 4. Council endorse the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item General Business A Liveability Project Update, namely:

A series of questions were taken on notice with respect to the Liveability Project including:

- 1 Heritage Committee sought further information about the detail of the compacted granular substrate and its ability to allow the percolation of water.
- The method of interface between the paving and sandstone kerbing and how this is being treated?
- 3 When and how is the drainage testing undertaken?
- 4 Is the substrate in a certain area?
- 5 Who is overseeing the quality of this work?
- 5. Council note and investigate the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item General Business B Tebbutts Barn, namely:

#### That Council:

- 1. Has a moral obligation and community response to conserve the building known as Tebbutts Barn and that the current method of storage of historic fabric is leading to further deterioration and there should be emergency conservation works undertaken including the reinstatement of fabric from the structure to its original state.
- 2. Utilise this as a test case/workshop for the best practice in conserving slab barns.
- 6. Council note and investigate the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item General Business C Robertson's House Windsor 394 George Street, Windsor, namely:
  - Council to consider recommending the building for listing on the State Heritage Register, recognising the quality of the sandstone carving and aesthetic significance, including related heritage works of stonemasons O'Kelly and Robertson in the local cemeteries, state listed site in Manly and the importance of the masonry.
- 7. Council endorse the Committee Recommendation in respect of Item General Business D Windsor Bridge Artefacts Working Group, namely:
  - The term of the Windsor Bridge Artefacts Working Group be extended until the end of the Council term.
- 8. Council note and investigate the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item General Business E Damage to the Kerb and Gutter on Tebbutt Street, namely:

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### That Council:

- 1. Note that the kerb and the gutter are made of sandstone and the committee request that this be reinstated.
- 2. Put in place policies and procedures for the protection of sandstone kerb and guttering within the Hawkesbury Local Government Area to identify, guide and protect maintenance and repairs.
- 9. Council note and investigate the Committee Recommendations in respect of Item General Business F Slab Barns and Materials, namely:

#### That:

- 1. Council look at some sort of repository for materials associated with historic slab barns. Council needs a store house for materials for reuse or a list of what is available and where it is kept.
- 2. The Heritage Committee further discuss the need for a repository or a connection point between owners and users of heritage materials.
- 10. Council note and investigate the Committee Recommendation in respect of Item General Business G Toll House, namely:

The Heritage Committee requests that Council's Heritage Officer inspect the Toll House and report back to the Committee to discuss what needs to be undertaken to meet requirements and future uses. For further discussion.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Absent: Councillor Wheeler.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

11.1.3. ROC - Disaster and Emergency Committee - 28 May 2024 - (151940)

**Directorate:** Infrastructure Services

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 132 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

That Council adopt the recommendations contained in the Minutes of the Disaster and Emergency Committee meeting held on 28 May 2024.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

11.1.4. ROC - Local Traffic Committee - 13 May 2024 - (82045)

**Directorate:** Infrastructure Services

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 133 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

That the Council adopt the recommendations contained in the minutes of the Hawkesbury City Council Local Traffic Committee meeting held on 13 May 2024.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

11.1.5. ROC - Local Traffic Committee - 17 June 2024 - (82045)

**Directorate:** Infrastructure Services

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 134 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Veigel, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

That the Council adopt the recommendations contained in the minutes of the Hawkesbury City Council Local Traffic Committee meeting held on 17 June 2024.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 12. NOTICES OF MOTION

#### 12.1.1. NM1 - Tree Planting, George Street, Windsor

#### **MOTION:**

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Dogramaci, seconded by Councillor Sheather.

#### That the Council:

- 1. Stop and not to go ahead planting trees and possibly constructing flower beds on George Street starting from the Council chamber all the way to where the Windsor Mall, all along to the intersection of the FITZGERALD street.
- 2. That council officers, all involved should visit business owners to discuss small business owners' worries, business restriction reduced and/or restricted car parking spots that will cause inconvenience on elderly, incapacitated on wheel chairs, scooters using the pathways during the work.

For the Motion: Councillor Dogramaci.

Against the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Kotlash, Lyons-Buckett,

Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Absent: Nil.

The Motion on being put was declared Lost.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

### 12.1.2. NM2 - Recognition and Thank you, Superintendent Karen Hodges AFSM, NSW Rural Fire Service

Councillor McMahon declared a less than significant non-pecuniary interest in this matter, being that she is a member of the Hawkesbury Communications RFS Brigade. Councillor McMahon remained in the Chamber and participated in the discussion and voting on the matter.

Mr Craig Burley addressed Council, speaking for the recommendation.

#### MOTION:

MOVED on the motion of Councillor Wheeler, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### Refer to RESOLUTION

#### 135 RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor Wheeler, seconded by Councillor Lyons-Buckett.

#### That Council:

- 1. Notes the outstanding contribution made by Superintendent Karen Hodges AFSM in her role as Fire Control Officer at the NSW Rural Fire Service Hawkesbury District.
- 2. Thanks her for more than three decades of service to the Hawkesbury.
- 3. Wishes her well in her new appointment as Deputy Chief Officer, Rural Fire Service Queensland.

For the Motion: Councillors McMahon, Calvert, Conolly, Djuric, Dogramaci, Kotlash, Lyons-

Buckett, Reardon, Sheather, Veigel, Wheeler and Zamprogno.

Against the Motion: Nil.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 13. QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE

Nil questions.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 14. RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

14.1.1. Responses to Councillor Questions Taken on Notice at the Council Meeting - 28 May 2024

Comments and further questions were provided to the Councillor Questions Taken on Notice at the Council Meeting on 28 May 2024.

14.1.2. Responses to Councillor Questions Taken on Notice at the Council Meeting - 11 June 2024

There were no comments or further questions to the Councillor Questions Taken on Notice at the Council Meeting on 11 June 2024.

Minutes: 9 July 2024

#### 15. CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS

Nil reports.	
Meeting terminated at 8:37pm.	
Submitted to and confirmed at the Ordinary meeting on 23 July 2024.	Mayor



# Ordinary Meeting

# End of Minutes

This business paper has been produced electronically to reduce costs, improve efficiency and reduce the use of paper. Internal control systems ensure it is an accurate reproduction of Council's official copy of the business paper.